
      
PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:

City-Council-Live-StreamCity-Council-Live-Stream

CORTEZ CITY COUNCILCORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETINGREGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2022TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2022
7:30 P.M.7:30 P.M.

      

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  ROLL CALL,  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.   

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA

The listing under "Consent Agenda" is a group of items to be acted on with a single motion and vote.
This agenda is designed to expedite the handling of limited routine matters by City Council. Either the
public or a Councilmember may request that an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at that
time, prior to Council's vote. The Mayor will ask if a citizen or Councilmember wishes to have any
specific item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.

  

 

a. Approval of the Council Worksession and Agenda Minutes held on September 13, 2022.
 

b. Approval of the Expenditure List for September 27, 2022
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to anThere is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to an
overall time limit of 30 minutes.overall time limit of 30 minutes.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

4. PRESENTATIONS   

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 

a. Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022
 

 Council will consider approving on second and final reading Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022, an
ordinance amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code Section 3.05 - use regulations regarding child care
facilities, large home based.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 

7. NEW BUSINESS   

 

a. Resolution No 27, Series 2022
 

 Council shall consider approving Resolution No 27, Series 2022, approving a minor subdivision of an
amended plat of Tract A, Lot 2, per Re-subdivision of Lot 2 Russell Subdivision as AKC Townhomes.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

http://www.cityofcortez.com/497 /City-Council-Live-Stream


      
b. Resolution No 28, Series 2022

 
 Council will consider approving Resolution No 28, Series 2022, approving a minor subdivision

(boundary adjustment) of two parcels located in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township
36 North, Range 16 West, N.M.P.M.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

c.  Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
 

 Council shall consider approving on first reading Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022, an ordinance
amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05 - Use Regulations Regarding Dwelling,
Accessory Unit - ADU, and set for public hearing on October 11, 2022.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner
 

d. Appointment of Orly Lucero to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals and Rachel Weaver and Darren
Uptain to the Cortez Historic Preservation Board
 

 Council will consider appointing Orly Lucero to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals for a three year
term and Rachel Weaver to the Cortez Historic Preservation Board for a three year term.  Also, as
requested by the Montezuma County Historical Society, that Darren Uptain be appointed as their
representative on the Cortez Historic Preservation Board, replacing Patricia Lacey, for a three year term.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Linda Smith, City Clerk
 

e. 2022 Library HVAC Equipment Bid Results
 

 Council may consider making a motion to award the 2022 Library HVAC equipment bid to Trane at the
bid amount of $134,750.52.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Rick Smith, General Services Director
 

f. 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club Heating System
 

 Council may consider making a motion giving permission to the 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club to
replace the heating system using the NRA grant and Club monies.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Rick Smith, General Services Director
 

g. Lease Agreement with Denver Air Connection
 

 Council will consider approving the Lease Agreement with Denver Air Connection for the use of the
terminal and movement areas as described in the Lease Agreement.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Jeremy Patton, Airport Manager
 

h. Ordinance No. 1312, Series 2022
 

 Council will consider approving on first reading, Ordinance No. 1312, Series 2022, authorizing and
approving an amendment to a ground lease with Classic Air Medical for construction of an aircraft
hangar at the Cortez Municipal Airport, and set for public hearing on October 11, 2022.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Jeremy Patton, Airport Manager



 
i. Dolores River National Conservation Area and Special Management Area Letter of Support

 
 Council will consider approving a Letter of Support for the Dolores River National Conservation Area

and Special Management Area and authorize the Mayor to sign the Letter.
 

Presenter: Presenter: Drew Sanders, City Manager
 

8. DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES   

 

9. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT   

 

10. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT   

 

11. CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a. Mayor's Report on Workshop   

 

b. Other Board Reports   

 

12. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Executive Session as needed.   

 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

14. ADJOURNMENT   

 



      
 
PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION 11, SERIES 2022, PUBLIC COMMENT:
--Individuals may comment regarding items on the Council agenda or any other topic they wish to address the
City Council about, including items discussed in a previous Council Workshop.    Those wishing to comment
must register by completing an "Intent to Speak" card (located outside of the Council chambers).  Completed
cards will be collected at the start of the meeting and delivered to the Mayor, who will call each speaker to the
podium at the appropriate time.  Comments specific to agenda items scheduled for public hearings should be
reserved and delivered during the public hearing session.
--Courtesy, civility, and respect for others is expected.  All comments should be addressed directly to the
Council. Commenters who are called upon by the Mayor to speak are the only persons allowed to speak during
the allotted time.  Comments, or other distractions from the audience intended for commenters or others are not
permitted.  The Mayor, as the chairperson for the meeting, retains the discretion to deviate from the formats
described below.
--There are two general opportunities for citizens to address the Council:
For the first opportunity (which will occur toward the start of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, although public comments will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes so City business may
proceed.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
other commenters.
For the second opportunity (which will occur toward the end of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, and no overall time limit.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once,
and may not cede time to other commenters.
--Other Opportunities to Participate
Citizens may also participate via email if addressed to councilcomments@cortezco.gov. Comments received by
3:00pm the day of a Council meeting will be delivered to Council the same day and entered into the meeting
minutes.  Citizens may also send letters to the Council by addressing them to "City Council" 123 Roger Smith
Ave., Cortez, CO 81321.  In-person deliveries are also accepted.

MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:
--For a conference with the City attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b);
--For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing
strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e);
--To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a)
--For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f)(l) and not involving: any specific fie
employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session: any member of this body or any elected
official: the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official: or personnel policies
that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees
--For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or state law, or regulation:
____ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c)
--For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402(4)(d)
--For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g)

AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DETAILS ARE PROVIDED:
(a brief description must be included following the statute citation regarding why the executive session is being
held) 
 

 

mailto:councilcomments@cortezco.gov


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 2. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Linda Smith, City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the Council Worksession and Agenda Minutes held on September 13, 2022.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Worksession Minutes for September 13, 2022
Agenda Minutes for September 13, 2022



  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR WORKSHOP 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 

6:15 p.m. 

 

 

1.  The worksession was called to order at 6:16 p.m., at the City Council Chambers.  

Councilmembers present included Mayor Rachel Medina, Lydia DeHaven, Robert Dobry, Matt 

Keefauver, David Rainey, and Dennis Spruell.  Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie was absent.  Staff 

members present included Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright, Chief of Police 

Vern Knuckles, Director of Public Works Brian Peckins, Court Administrator Carla Odell, 

Airport Manager Jeremy Patton, Director of Community and Economic Development Rachael 

Marchbanks, IT Technician Aaron Holleman, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Clerk 

Linda Smith, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were four 

people present in the audience.  

 

2.   It was noted that Orly Lucero is interested in serving on the Board of Adjustment and 

Appeals.  Should Council make the appointment, Mr. Lucero would replace Katrina Weiss who 

has recently been appointed to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Also, Rachel Weaver was 

interviewed for the Historic Preservation Board opening.  Ms. Weaver stated that she is a realtor 

and has a great interest in historic properties.  It was noted that Ms. Weaver would replace Cody 

Wells who recently resigned.  Councilmember Dobry, serving as Council representative on the 

Historic Preservation Board, stated that it is helpful to have a realtor on the board as they can 

offer information on homes in the community.   

 

3.   Airport Manager Jeremy Patton; Court Administrator Carla Odell; Director of Parks and 

Recreation Creighton Wright; Director of Community and Economic Development Rachael 

Marchbanks; and Director of Public Works Brian Peckins made presentations to City Council on 

the highlights of each of their departments.  

 

4.    General Council Discussion.  Mayor Medina spoke about a Letter of Support for the Dolores 

River Natural Conservation Area; however, after discussion on the letter it was decided to add 

the item to the next Council agenda for further discussion.  Also, Mayor Medina stated that 

Councilmember Yazzie had wanted to thank Manager of Marketing and Special Events Jon 

Brooks for his help with planning the RISE Southwest Suicide Awareness Walk that was held 

last weekend.  She stated that there were over 150 participants at the event.  

 

The regular worksession was adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 



 

 

      CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 

 

 

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 7:35 p.m., with the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  Roll Call was taken and the following Councilmembers were present:  Mayor Rachel 

Medina, Lydia DeHaven, Robert Dobry, Matthew Keefauver, David Rainey, and Dennis Spruell.  

Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie was absent.  Staff present included Chief of Police Vernon Knuckles, 

IT Technician Aaron Holleman, Director of Finance Kelly Koskie, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Creighton Wright, Director of General Services Rick Smith, Director of Public Works Brian 

Peckins, Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall, Director of Community and Economic 

Development Rachael Marchbanks, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Clerk Linda Smith, 

City Manager Drew Sanders, and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were 15 people present in 

the audience. 

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that the agenda be approved as presented. Councilmember DeHaven 

seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                 Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

2.    The Consent Agenda items acted upon by Council were as follows: 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Worksession and Regular Council Meeting held on August 23, 

2022. 

 

b.  Approval of the Expenditure List for September 13, 2022. 

 

c. Approval of a renewal Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for Loungin’ Lizard, Inc., DBA 

Loungin’ Lizard, located at 2 West Main Street, Cortez. 

 

d. Approval of a renewal Tavern Liquor License for the Cortez Conference Center, LLC, DBA 

Destination Grill, located at 2121 East Main Street. 

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that the Consent Agenda be approved as presented.  

Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                 Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

3.    CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  

 

Mayor Medina opened the Citizen Participation.   

 

a.  Lisa Passell, 515 Texas Street and local business owner, questioned the expenditure for a 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 2 

   

 

 

housing needs assessment ($46,000) asking why the City has money for such items when the City is 

trying to trim funds.  She commented that everyone knows what the housing market is in the area 

and suggested that Council spend the money on attracting industry and jobs to the area that will 

provide higher paying jobs.  Ms. Passell also spoke about the Refuse Fund commenting on the 

revenue/expenditures for the recycling program which as of July 31, 2022 is at a $93,000 loss.  She 

asked why the program is continued at such a loss.  She asked that Council review the projects that 

come before them and quit spending tax payer dollars on unnecessary items. 

 

b.  County Commissioner Kent Lindsay asked that Council consider approving a Letter of Support 

for the Dolores River Natural Conservation Area.  He stated that the County has been working on 

this project for many years and discussion continues on how best to preserve water rights for the 

community (Mancos, Dolores, and Cortez) into the future.   

 

4.    PRESENTATIONS  

 

a.   National GEAR UP Week 2022 and Proclamation.  Tai Rogers, Colorado GEAR UP Pre-

Collegiate Advisory at Montezuma-Cortez High School, thanked Council for the opportunity to 

speak about the GEAR UP program (Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate 

Programs).  He spoke about the background of the program which helps provide low-income, 

minority, and disadvantaged students with the support and resources they need to go to college.  He 

spoke about the events that will be held during the week of September 26-30, 2022, at M-CHS in 

regard to GEAR UP Week and noted that this is the fourth year that the program is being celebrated 

in the community.  It was noted that there are several youth positons open on City boards should 

any youth be interested.  Mayor Medina read the proclamation for the record. 

 

b.  2022 July Financial Statements.  Finance Director Koskie reviewed the highlights of the 2022 

July Financial Statements stating that the golf course green fees revenue is up 82.4% and the 

outdoor pool revenue has doubled what was projected.  It was noted that staff is working on the 

2023 Budget and the public may comment on the budget through the ClearGov transparency section 

which is available on the City’s website.  Council will review the comments made by the public 

during the review of the 2023 proposed budget scheduled for Saturday, September 24, 2022.   

 

5.    PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

a.  Resolution No. 24, Series 2022.  Contract City Planner Dosdall stated that Resolution No. 24, 

Series 2022, approves a preliminary plat for CBERT Cortez, LLC Subdivision, a three lot 

subdivision in the E1/2, SW1/4,S25, T36N, R16W, N.M.P.M., located in the Commercial Highway 

(C) Zoning District.  She stated that the property is zoned Commercial Highway and the American 

Family Care Clinic which was recently constructed would be located on Lot 1 and a small 

commercial lot would be available on Lot 2.  She commented that Tract 1 (Lot 3) is 15.91 acres and 

is currently vacant with no proposed plans at this time for the property.  Pictures of the site were 

shown for Council and the public to view regarding the layout of the property.  Contract City 

Planner Dosdall spoke about the reason for the major subdivision noting that the proposal includes 

the dedication of several streets (extension of Texas Street, extension of Montezuma Avenue, and 

the extension of Kansas Street to connect with Hawkins Street).  She commented that the dedication 

of the easement for the streets does not mean that the streets are being constructed; however, the 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 3 

   

 

 

dedication is required as part of the preliminary plat process.  She spoke about the review of the 

proposal in regard to meeting any provisions of the Comprehensive Plan and the City’s 

Thoroughfare Plan.  She noted that the Planning and Zoning  Commissioner reviewed the proposal 

on September 6, 2022, and recommended approval with three conditions.       

 

Mayor Medina opened the public hearing.  Kay and James Garlinghouse, 33 North Texas Street, 

stated that they object to the proposal and asked about Montezuma Avenue being developed through 

the vacant property.  Discussion was held on the right-of-way being dedicated for future streets and 

it was again emphasized that there are no plans for anything to be constructed on Lot 3 at this time.  

Gary Unrein, 1902 Downey Avenue, spoke about his concerns with the plat and how it is laid out 

and what may be developed on the property.  He spoke about the current streets that are constructed 

in the area and how they cannot take heavy traffic.  He stated the property is zoned Commercial and 

anything can go onto the property, such as a high density housing development.  Spencer Smith, 

applicant for the project, stated that he does not know where the rumor started that a high 

occupancy housing development was being proposed for the property; however, that information is 

incorrect and there are no plans for development of Lot 3 at this time.  In answer to a question from 

Mr. Garlinghouse, Mayor Medina stated that whatever is eventually proposed for the 15 acre parcel 

in the future will require notice to the public.   

 

Councilmember Keefauver noted that the proposal is for the development of Lot 1 and Lot 2 at this 

time and one day Lot 3 will be developed; however, nothing is proposed at this time.  City Attorney 

Coleman commented that Council is only reviewing the request for approval of a subdivision of 

three lots and the lots, when developed, will be determined for their usage through the zoning 

requirements.  Mayor Medina closed the public hearing. 

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council approve Resolution No. 24, Series 2022, approving 

a preliminary plat for CBERT Cortez, LLC Subdivision, a three lot subdivision in the E1/2, 

SW1/4,S25, T36N, R16W, N.M.P.M., located in the Commercial Highway (C) Zoning District, with 

three conditions.  Councilmember Dobry seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

b.  Resolution No. 23, Series 2022, regarding Champion Xpress Carwash has been postponed until 

October 11, 2022.   

 

6.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 

 

7.     NEW BUSINESS 

  

a. Letter of Support for Region 9 Middle Mile Fiber Network Project.  Director of General Services 

Smith introduced Shak Powers, Regional Projects Manager for Region 9, who presented the 

information regarding the Letter of Support for the Region 9 Middle Mile Fiber Network Project.  

Mr. Powers stated that Region 9 is submitting a grant request on behalf of the five counties to the 

State of Colorado Broadband Office (CBO) and the Federal NTIA for a region Middle Mile Fiber 

Optic Network.  He stated that the project would construct a fiber network (middle mile) along 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 4 

   

 

 

Highway 160 from Cortez eventually to Walsenburg.  He stated that an Intergovernmental 

Agreement would be completed at a later date should the grant be approved and the plans would 

then be put in place on how to manage the Middle Mile Fiber Network Project.  He spoke about the 

grant funding request and how some of the match would be provided through CDOT (Colorado 

Department of Transportation) and Empire Electric.      

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that Council approve a Letter of Support for Region 9 to apply for 

the Middle Mile Fiber Network Project and authorize the Mayor to sign the letter.  Councilmember 

Spruell seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

            DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

b.  Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022, Land Use Code Amendment regarding Accessory Dwelling 

Units (ADU) has been postponed.  First reading for Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022, will be held 

on September 27, 2022.  Second reading and public hearing is scheduled for October 11, 2022. 

 

c.  Ordinance No. 1305, Series 2022, Land Use Code Amendment regarding Food Trucks and 

Ordinance No. 1311, Series 2022, Land Use Code Amendment regarding Affordable Housing have 

been postponed.  First reading for Ordinance No. 1305, Series 2022 and Ordinance No. 1311, Series 

2022, will be held on October 11, 2022.  Second reading and public hearing is scheduled for 

October 25, 2022. 

 

d.  Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022.  Contract City Planner Dosdall spoke about Ordinance No. 

1310, Series 2022, which is presented on first reading, amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code, 

Section 3.05, regarding the re-classification of large home based child care facilities from 

Conditional Uses to Permitted Uses in the RE, R-1, R-2, MH, and NB zones.  She stated that 

Colorado House Bill 21-1222 became effective on September 8, 2021, and requires local agencies 

to treat all licensed family child care homes the same as they would treat a single family dwelling.  

She stated that the existing Land Use Code allows small, home based child care facilities as a 

permitted use in all zones (except Open zone) that allow single family homes without additional 

regulations.  She stated that large home based child care facilities (12 or less children) are currently 

conditional uses in all zones (except Open zone) that allow single family homes.  She stated that 

Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022, would bring the code into compliance as the House Bill requires.   

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022, amending the City of 

Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05, regarding the re-classification of large home based child care 

facilities from Conditional Uses to Permitted Uses in the RE, R-1, R-2, MH and NB zones, be 

approved on first reading and set for second reading on September 27, 2022.  Councilmember 

DeHaven seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

            DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

e. Bid Proposal Results for 2023 City of Cortez Housing Needs Assessment.  Director of 

Community and Economic Development Marchbanks stated that in May of 2022, Council met and 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 5 

   

 

 

identified housing as a top priority during its retreat.  She stated that in order to better facilitate 

housing development and better position the City for grants, a Cortez-specific housing needs 

assessment is needed.  She stated that the City has approached CHFA to help fund the assessment in 

the amount of $25,0000, and that the remainder of the amount for the assessment would come from 

the Grants Administration budget.  A Request for Proposals was advertised and two proposals were 

received.  Staff is recommending that the bid be awarded to Williford, LLC (low bidder) in the 

amount of $46,000.  In answer to a question from Councilmember Spruell, the scope of 

services/benefits of the assessment was reviewed as outlined in the proposal.  Councilmember 

Spruell noted that one of the important items to him that would be completed in the project would 

include information on the problems, challenges, and recommendations on the regulatory policies 

of the City.  Director of Community and Economic Development Marchbanks noted that the City 

would likely spend $10,500 for the match this year and the other part of the match ($10,500) in 

2023.  Councilmember DeHaven commented that everyone knows of the housing issues for the 

community but the data that will be provided by the experts is important to help know more about 

the housing needs and to be able to apply for grants.   

 

City Attorney Coleman suggested that Council open the item to receive public input.  Susan 

Kemnitz, 511 South Cedar Street, stated that she feels the City goes about things in the wrong way 

commenting that most of the jobs in the community are low paying and the City should be trying to 

attract businesses that pay a decent living wage so the people would be able to buy a better home.  

John Kennedy, 620 East Empire Street, stated that new businesses have come to Cortez and are 

bringing new jobs.  No other public comments were received.  Mayor Medina stated that the City is 

not getting in the real estate business but is asking what can the City do to help facilitate 

development.  She commented that the City can make changes to the Land Use Code and partner 

with stakeholders to help move the needle on housing development.   

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council award the Housing Needs Assessment Project to 

Williford, LLC in the bid amount of $46,000, and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and enter 

into a professional services contract with Williford, LLC.  Councilmember Dobry seconded the 

motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

f. Approval to Apply for Housing Incentives Grant (IHOP) from DOLA.  Director of Community 

and Economic Development Marchbanks stated that in order to address current and future housing 

needs, the City is applying for funding assistance from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

(DOLA) Innovative Housing Strategy Grant (IHOP).  She stated that the City intends to apply for 

approximately $175,000, with a 25% match required, that would be used to develop innovative land 

use policies and regulations in order to facilitate and incentivize the development of workforce 

housing.  She noted that the City’s current Land Use Code will need to be adjusted to follow best 

practices in order to address housing development.  In answer to a question from Councilmember 

Dobry regarding the match, Director of Community and Economic Development Marchbanks 

stated that the Housing Needs Assessment funding would not be able to be used for the match 

required for the Housing Incentives Grant (IHOP). 

 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 6 

   

 

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council authorize City of Cortez Community and Economic 

Development Department to apply for the Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) 

Innovative Housing Strategy Grant (IHOP) for up to $175,000 and to provide a 25% match.   

Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

g. Intergovernmental Agreement with Montezuma County to Act as Grant Pass-Through for DOLA 

IHOP Grant.  Director of Community and Economic Development Marchbanks stated that in order 

to apply for the IHOP grant, the City has asked Montezuma County to act as a pass-through for the 

grant.  She noted that the County would act as the Grantee for the grant, carry out all of the work 

and requirements of the Grantee as specified in any agreements the County or the City may enter 

into with DOLA as part of the award, and compensation to the County will be in the amount of 2% 

of the grant funds received.  It was noted that the administrative fee will come from the Grants 

Budget.  City Attorney Coleman stated that the IGA states that the agreement would be effective in 

August and he recommended that the motion reflect that the agreement is being approved on this 

date (September 13, 2022). 

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that Council approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with 

Montezuma County to act as a grant pass-through for the DOLA IHOP Grant, with the amendment 

that the date be changed to reflect approval on September 13, 2022.  Councilmember DeHaven 

seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

            DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 

h. Resolution No. 25, Series 2022.  Contract City Planner Dosdall stated that Resolution No. 25, 

Series 2022, approves a .6 foot encroachment permit for property located at 102 East North Street, 

owned by Patricia Berens.  She stated that County records indicate that the building was constructed 

in 1943 and a recent survey shows an encroachment in Beech Street right-of-way of .6’ or 7.2 

inches.  She reviewed the Encroachment Permit regulation from Land Use Code Section 6.26 

noting that the encroachment appears to be an inadvertent encroachment that was contracted prior 

to City regulations for setback requirements or inspections.  She stated that the structure will 

continue to be legally non-conforming and the structure looks to be similar to other non-conforming 

properties in the area as well.  She stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 

approval.  It was noted that the Encroachment Permit (which is through the resolution) would run 

with the property; however, it is revocable should there be a need to do that.     

 

Councilmember Spruell moved that Council approve Resolution No. 25, Series 2022, approving an 

Encroachment Permit for 102 East North Street, to encroach a total of .6’ into Beech Street right-of-

way.  Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                  Yes                Yes              Yes             absent 

 



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 7 

   

 

 

  8.    DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES – None. 

 

  9.   CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT – None. 

 

 10.   CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

a.   Annual Budget Preparation/Board to Board Meeting/Community and Economic Development 

Department.  City Manager Sanders stated that the annual budget preparation process continues 

and he encouraged the public to link into the ClearGov Financial Center to offer their comments on 

the financial priorities for 2023.  He stated that Council participated in a Board to Board meeting at 

the Ute Mountain Casino on August 25, 2022.  He stated that there was some excellent interaction 

between all the governing bodies  (Town of Mancos, Town of Dolores, Ute Mountain Ute Tribe, 

and Montezuma County) and noted that the meeting will result in partnerships on various projects.  

He stated that he is proud of the Community and Economic Development Department and the 

progress that is being made with partners and stakeholders on meaningful changes and 

improvements for the community.    

 

 11.   CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a.   Mayor’s Report on Workshop.  Mayor Medina stated that during the worksession an interview 

was held with Rachel Weaver for an opening on the Historic Preservation Board.  Also, she stated 

that presentations were made by the following City departments:  Airport Manager Jeremy Patton; 

Court Administrator Carla Odell; Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright; Director of 

Public Works Brian Peckins; and Director of Community and Economic Development Rachael 

Marchbanks.  She spoke about the Board to Board meeting with the Town of Dolores, Town of 

Mancos, Ute Mountain Ute Tribal Members, and Montezuma County noting that it was a great 

meeting and she hopes that everyone will continue to communicate and work together for the 

betterment of the community.  She also noted that the Ute Mountain Ute Tribe celebrated their 30th 

anniversary of the casino and she and Councilmember DeHaven attended the event.  She stated 

that it was a great event which included past Tribal Councilmembers speaking about their 

experiences.  Mayor Medina spoke about signing a proclamation for the Daughters of the 

Revolution which celebrates the 235th birthday of the constitution.  And also that she attended an 

ice cream social at Madison House and signed a proclamation on National Assisted Living Week.  

Mayor Medina also noted that on Wednesday, September 14, 2022, she will attend the Mesa Verde 

Tourism Board meeting.    

 

b.  Arts Committee/Cortez Cultural Center.  Councilmember Rainey stated that the Arts Committee 

continues to discuss the possibility of a creative district and is reaching out to other neighboring 

communities that have similar districts.  He encouraged everyone that hasn’t been to the Cortez 

Cultural Center recently to stop by and visit the newly remodeled gallery.   

 

c.   Cortez Historical Preservation Board.  Councilmember Dobry stated that Rachel Weaver, 

applicant for the opening on the Cortez Historical Preservation Board, was interviewed by the 

board members during the board meeting on September 7, 2022.   

   

12.   OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS  



CITY COUNCIL                    REGULAR MEETING               SEPTEMBER 13, 2022             PAGE 8 

   

 

 

 

a.  Councilmember Dobry moved that Council convene to Executive Session at 9:10 p.m. for the 

purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, strategy for 

negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e)(I).  The 

topics of the Executive Session include contract negotiations with Mesa Verde Country regarding 

their current professional services contract and an update will be given on the negotiations for the 

possible sale or lease of the Cortez Community Fiber Network.  Councilmember DeHaven 

seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows:   

 

            DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes              Yes                  Yes                   Yes               Yes              Yes             absent 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 10:25 p.m.  Participants in the Executive Session 

included City Manager Sanders, City Attorney Coleman, Mayor Medina, Councilmember 

DeHaven, Councilmember Dobry, Councilmember Keefauver, Councilmember Rainey, and 

Councilmember Spruell.  No adoption of any policy, position, resolution, rule, regulations, or other 

formal action occurred during Executive Session. 

 

13.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that the regular meeting be adjourned a 10:26 p.m.  Councilmember 

Keefauver seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

             DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

                 Yes                Yes                  Yes                 Yes                 Yes             Yes            absent 

 

 

  ________________________________  

                                               Rachel B. Medina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

      Linda L. Smith, City Clerk         



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 2. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Sara Coffey, Finance Assistant/Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Approval of the Expenditure List for September 27, 2022
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Expenditure List



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

City Manager SAMBA HOLDINGS, INC. USAGE 130.76$          
Total 130.76$          

City Clerk BRAND CENTRAL SHIRTS 2,428.50$       
CORTEZ RETAIL ENHANCEMENT ASSN CORTEZ CASH CARDS 150.00$          

Total 2,578.50$       

Events PIONEER PRINTING BUSINESS CARDS, BROCHURES 314.00$          
Total 314.00$          

Library HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTIONAL REN06004-WB Hardwound towels - LB 74.55$            
HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTIONAL 12024402 Tork Mini Jumbo Toilet Tissue - LB 80.18$            
OVERDRIVE LIBRARY SERVICES 3,000.00$       
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 16.15$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 16.15$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 16.70$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 17.18$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 17.19$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 17.22$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 25.04$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 28.58$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 35.32$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 39.54$            
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 167.24$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 194.32$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 259.69$          
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AUDIO BOOKS 27.99$            
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AUDIO BOOKS 64.00$            
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL 394.92$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Library 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Library 45.50$            
USA TODAY - SUBSCRIBER SUBSCRIPTION 34.00$            

Total 4,616.96$       

City Hall Operations CDLE-FINANCE OFFICE-BOILER INSP Inspection Fee and Certification Fee for CO12190   125.00$          
CDLE-FINANCE OFFICE-BOILER INSP Inspection Fee and Certification Fee for CO12190   125.00$          
CDLE-FINANCE OFFICE-BOILER INSP Inspection Fee and Certification Fee for CO12190   125.00$          
REYNOLDS ASH + ASSOCIATES Architectural Services - City Hall Expansion Phase     10,060.00$    
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall Fire Alarm 25.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall Fire Alarm 25.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - City Hall 45.50$            
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 738.29$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 603.17$          
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - CH 64.89$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 11,982.35$    

Welcome Center ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Welcome Center 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Welcome Center 45.50$            
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 29.56$            
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - WC 64.89$            

Total 185.45$          

Poloce Department AT&T MOBILITY PHONE 132.09$          
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 40.01$            
GALL'S LLC Shipping (2.36)$             
GALL'S LLC Shipping 3.49$               
GALL'S LLC Class A uniform shirt 61.60$            
GALL'S LLC Class A pant 61.60$            
AXIS HEALTH SYSTEM JAIL CONTRACT 350.00$          
MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL POLICE/ANIMALS 283.21$          
BRAND CENTRAL Embroider shirts - Animal Control 60.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 4.75$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 26.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 27.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 27.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 33.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 44.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 49.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket PO for uniform cleaning 54.00$            
GALL'S LLC Sergeant Chevron 0.99$               
GALL'S LLC Sergeant Chevron 28.16$            
GALL'S LLC 511 Tactical uniform polo shirt 100.00$          
TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE PERSON SEARCH 75.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - PD Evidence Building 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - PD Evidence Building 45.50$            
ORKIN EXTERMINATING-BRANCH #884 PEST CONTROL 175.00$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 33.36$            
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - PD 64.89$            

Total 2,286.79$       

Animal Shelter FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC CASTRATION 92.00$            
FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC SPAY 112.00$          
FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC SPAY 256.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Animal Shelter 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Animal Shelter 45.50$            
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 39.90$            

Total 590.90$          

Public Works FOUR CORNERS MATERIALS Blanket PO - Hot mix material for Street Repairs 593.54$          
FOUR CORNERS MATERIALS Blanket PO - Hot mix material for Street Repairs 1,121.39$       
MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL CLEAN UP WEEK - MATTRESS 221.00$          
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 210.02$          
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Titan PowrLiner 3500 Line Striper 4hp Single Gun 5,399.95$       
GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. T9F298672 Flammable Storage Cabinet, 44 gallon   1,321.19$       
SCHAEFFER MANUFACTURING COMPA Citrol cleaner/degreaser grafitti remover, 16 oz a  154.20$          
SCHAEFFER MANUFACTURING COMPA Citrol cleaner/degreaser grafitti remover, 4 gallon  482.48$          

Total 9,503.77$       

Outdoor Pool ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Outdoor Pool 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS SERVICE CALL 105.00$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES WATER QUALITY TESTER 18.98$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES EMPLOYEE BBQ 53.71$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES POOL CONCESSION 202.60$          
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES CHLORINE INJECTION PUMP 442.98$          

Total 868.77$          

Golf Pro ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - GC Pro Shop 35.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARMS SERVICES 35.50$            

Total 71.00$            

Golf Course Maint ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Golf Course Maintenance Shop 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Golf Course Maintenance Shop 45.50$            
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. Fuel Surcharge - 20% 62.00$            
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. Portolet Rental #16 Tee Monthly 310.00$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 34.34$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Keens Wellington Composite toe work boots, Size   177.25$          
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 860-54-0088-16 Hymax Coupling 3.46-4.33 463.64$          
R & R PRODUCTS INC. R925-80 80 grit lapping compound 90.40$            
R & R PRODUCTS INC. R925-120 120 grit lapping compound 90.40$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES EMPLOYEE BBQ 53.71$            
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - GC 64.89$            
R & R PRODUCTS INC. RTCU29718 Roller shaft 64.10$            
R & R PRODUCTS INC. RTCA25970 Rear roller JD9009A 265.30$          
R & R PRODUCTS INC. R500592 Rotary blade low lift 27 inch 333.50$          

Total 2,100.53$       

Parks ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Park Shop 22.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Park Shop 22.00$            
MONICA'S CLEANING SERVICE LLC Blanket PO - 2022 Parks Restrooms Janitorial Serv 2,250.00$       
SPRINKLER PROS Blanket PO - Lawn Maintenance for 3rd/4th Pock         685.00$          
SPRINKLER PROS Blanket PO - Lawn Maintenance for Rodeo and Br   900.00$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 35.65$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PAINT, BRUSHES 28.44$            
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 ROTOR 437.52$          
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 CONTROL VALVE SCRUBBER 700.02$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE BATTERIES, PAINT 33.17$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES EMPLOYEE BBQ 53.71$            
FOUR CORNERS SAWS SPARK PLUGS 34.16$            
FOUR CORNERS SAWS SPARK PLUGS, CHAIN LOOP 51.98$            

Total 5,253.65$       

Recreation ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Softball Complex 22.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Softball Complex 22.00$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES EMPLOYEE BBQ 53.70$            

Total 97.70$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Shop FOUR STATES TIRE CO. LT225/75R16 Tires, Mount and Balance - Unit 469 689.00$          
KIMBALL - MIDWEST 80744 TorQ CB Penetrating Spray 28.54$            
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs/Supplies (10.00)$           
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs/Supplies 8.45$               
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs/Supplies 71.76$            
SENERGY PETROLEUM 86UL Gasoline for Service Center 4,938.40$       
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Service Center 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - IT/Server Room 45.50$            
STAPLES ADVANTAGE 806384 Gojo 9127-12 Hand Soap 44.40$            
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - SC 86.52$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 13R00662 Drum cartridge 325.98$          

Total 6,274.05$       

Technology MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL ELECTRONIC WASTE 26.00$            
CIVICPLUS Hourly Design Rate - 1 hour - CivicEngage 160.00$          
CENTURYLINK PHONE SERVICE 4.84$               

Total 190.84$          

Streets D & L CONSTRUCTION PW-22-01-SW Mildred Road Reconstruction/Wat     240,470.79$  
Total 240,470.79$  

Airport EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 56.28$            
Total 56.28$            

Dispatch LANGUAGE LINE SERVICE INTERPRETATION SERVICE 20.02$            
Total 20.02$            

Rec Center ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Rec Center Fire Alarm 22.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Rec Center Fire Alarm 22.00$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Rec Center 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Rec Center 45.50$            
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS SERVICE CALL 105.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS SERVICE CALL 105.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS SERVICE CALL 105.00$          
SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC GAS SERVICE 3,876.71$       
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FAN 85.13$            
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES EMPLOYEE BBQ 53.71$            
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BATTERIES, DISINFECT 119.90$          
XEROX CORPORATION COPIER EXPENSE 320.15$          

Total 4,905.60$       

Water SAN JUAN BASIN HEALTH DEPT. Blanket PO - Lab testing for Bac-T's 350.00$          
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS Alarm Services - Water Plant 30.00$            
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 120.15$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 16, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

USALCO MODESTO PLANT LLC Blanket PO - Aluminum Chlorhydrate/ACH T-FLOC 18,192.60$    
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS BLS-71027 Multifold Towels - WTP 21.63$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RAB WP1LED30 Wall Pack - WTP 360.00$          
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONE 40.03$            
BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL CLOTHING 15.25$            
BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL CLOTHING 26.24$            
BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL CLOTHING 251.47$          
BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE Pallet charge, exchanged (31.29)$           
BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE Pallet charge 31.29$            
BUILDERS FIRST SOURCE Pallet of Redi-mix concrete, 42 bags 252.84$          
CORE AND MAIN 144724 Tyler Union 39B Bottom Section 1,233.12$       
CORE AND MAIN 147701 Tyler Union 24T Top Section w/Water Lid 2,048.16$       
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 CI564S-16 Valve box top 153.52$          
TARGET RENTAL Pump (2) rental for water line repair 180.64$          
USA BLUEBOOK 350278 Gate Wrench Pin, 3/8 x 2-1/2 35.90$            
USA BLUEBOOK 75149 Rounded Nut Grabber Socket Kit 400.95$          
USA BLUEBOOK 34959 Telescope Gate Valve Key, 6 to 10 ft 477.09$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE RETURN DOORS (9.60)$             
D & L CONSTRUCTION PW-22-01-SW Mildred Road Reconstruction/Wat     60,499.90$    

Total 84,679.89$    

Refuse MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL RECYCLE CREDIT (449.05)$         
MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL Blanket PO - Landfill Charges 36,457.57$    
CHIROPRACTIC HEALTH ALLIANCE DOT PHYSICAL - BEDKER 80.00$            
BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL BOOTS 109.99$          
WASTEBUILT ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUT  PL3145SW 2YD Dumpster Lid, 31x45 Single Wall B 457.72$          
WASTEBUILT ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUT  PL3145SW 2YD Dumpster Lid, 31x45 Single Wall B 595.74$          
MONTEZUMA COUNTY LANDFILL RECYCLE CHARGE (3,436.00)$     

Total 33,815.97$    

Total 410,994.57$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 23, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Human Resources AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES UNV11202 Deluxe Colored Paper 39.98$          
Total 39.98$          

Municipal Court RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - BEGAYE 40.00$          
RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - FIRST APPEARANCES 60.00$          
RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - SILAS 60.00$          

Total 160.00$        

City Manager CORTEZ AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE HALLOWEEN SAFE STOP PARTICIPATION 40.00$          
Total 40.00$          

Events JIM DODSON CAR EVEN 400.00$        
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. 3RD THURSDAY EVENT 360.00$        
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. CAR EVENT 1,080.00$    

Total 1,840.00$    

Library ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 69.45$          
DEMCO INC LIBRARY SUPPLIES 112.82$        
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 15.60$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 16.15$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 16.69$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 71.72$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 78.32$          
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 179.20$        
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES BOOKS 422.55$        
THE LOCAL PAGES ADVERTISING 12.27$          

Total 994.77$        

City Hall Operations QUILL 901-15996Q Solo Bistro Hot/Cold Cups 300/cs 100.48$        
Total 100.48$        

Welcome Center ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
Total 45.50$          

Police Department SURVIVAL ARMOR INC. Class A Carrier - Knuckles 253.50$        
GALL'S LLC Speed boot 87.40$          
GALL'S LLC Boots 173.41$        
GALL'S LLC Shipping 24.00$          
GALL'S LLC Fingerprint pad 148.32$        
GALL'S LLC Flashlights 614.56$        
GALL'S LLC Patrol Duty gear 1,426.92$    
LORI OLIVER REIMB PETTY CASH - CLAMPS FOR RADARS 25.13$          
LORI OLIVER REIMB PETTY CASH - ITEMS FOR AIPORT FLY-IN 46.61$          
LORI OLIVER REIMB PETTY CASH - BIKE PATROL EQUIPMENT 58.27$          
DAN'S REPAIR 2022 Ford F150 install emergency equipment 750.00$        



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 23, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

SIRCHIE Evidence collection supplies 166.32$        
SIRCHIE Evidence collection supplies 1,124.43$    
MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFF AUGUST INMATES 3,500.00$    
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) MATS 93.74$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) MATS 98.00$          
U.S. POSTMASTER POSTAGE 37.65$          

Total 8,673.76$    

Animal Shelter ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) MATS 39.37$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) MATS 39.37$          

Total 124.24$        

Public Works EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 77.68$          
Total 77.68$          

Outdoor Pool ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 683.62$        
CEM SALES AND SERVICE SPLASH PAD PANEL & CONTROLLER 15,080.18$  
GRAINGER 3UL19 Asco 8210G095 Solenoid Valve 154.04$        

Total 15,963.34$  

Parks BRAVO CLEANING & RESTORATION CITY PARK TRASH REMOVAL 3,904.00$    
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 1,459.98$    
DOG WASTE DEPOT DOG WASTE ROLL BAG CASES 391.94$        
GRAINGER 31DK84 Trash bags, 38 x 58, Black, 60 gallon 488.60$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE ANT DUST 8.99$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE 1X4X10 PINE 19.34$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PAINT, BRUSH SET 28.19$          
CRUZAN IRRIGATION HOSE 2 DISCHARGE 116.37$        
NICE ELECTRIC Parts/Labor - Water pump repair - Parks 247.60$        

Total 6,665.01$    

Shop ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) Blanket PO - Mechanics Shirts Laundry Service 17.14$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) Blanket PO - Mechanics Shirts Laundry Service 19.93$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair (70.00)$         
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair (62.00)$         
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 11.85$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 13.45$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 23.34$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 31.99$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 98.12$          
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 132.57$        
PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 139.48$        



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 23, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

PARTNERS IN PARTS, INC. Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repair 139.48$        
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 1.69$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 3.95$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 3.95$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 4.02$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 5.51$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 15.72$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 21.74$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 22.70$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 24.50$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 25.55$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 27.57$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 43.49$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 51.59$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs 90.98$          
SENERGY PETROLEUM Dyed diesel for Golf Course 1,835.17$    
ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) Blanket PO - Floor Mat Service - Service Center 98.31$          
ALSCO (AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL) Blanket PO - Floor Mat Service - Service Center 98.31$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 34.82$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 44.20$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 50.76$          
FIRST RESPOND Blanket PO - 1st Aid Supplies 78.85$          
ZORO TOOLS INC Red Kap SP14 LS BK Medium Work Shirts - Repl  159.90$        

Total 3,284.13$    

Airport EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 765.39$        
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 29.56$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 35.91$          

Total 830.86$        

Dispatch RAGSDALE AND ASSOC. P.C. Psychological testing - Kelso 375.00$        
Total 375.00$        

Rec Center WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS ROLL TOWELS, TRASH LINERS 90.75$          
Total 90.75$          

Refuse ALPINE SECURITY & ELECTRONICS ALARM SERVICES 45.50$          
EMPIRE ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION ELECTRIC SERVICE 2,253.58$    
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 251.97$        
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. WORK CLOTHES 84.58$          
AT&T MOBILITY IPADS 253.41$        
JOHLIN MEASUREMENT LTD. SmartCards for Water Vending Machine, Tabor  385.00$        

Total 3,274.04$    



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 23, 2022

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 42,579.54$  



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 5. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving on second and final reading Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022, an ordinance
amending the City of Cortez Land Use Code Section 3.05 - use regulations regarding child care facilities, large
home based.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Daycare facilities
Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022



 BACKGROUND:

House Bill 21-1222 became effective on September 8, 2021.  The bill requires local agencies to treat all 
licensed family child care homes the same as the would treat a single family dwelling.  The existing land 
use code allows small, home based child care facilities as a permitted use in all zones (except “O”) that 
allow single family homes without additional regulation.  Large home based child care facilities (12 or 
less children) are currently conditional uses in all zones (except “O”) that allow single family homes. 

DISCUSSION: 

The existing code appears compliant for small, home based child care facilities.  The large, home based 
facilities are non-compliant and require a code amendment to make them permitted uses.  The HB does 
not apply to non-home based facilities which can remain conditional uses in all zone 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission and Staff recommend that Council make the motion to 
approve the proposed code revision  per Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022.

City of Cortez 
Planning and Building
123 Roger Smith Avenue Cortez, 
CO 81321

Item No:   
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2022 

TITLE: Amendment HB 21-1222

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning Department, Nancy Dosdall

ATTACHMENTS:  Cortez City Council Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022 
Project Narrative

House Bill 



CITY OF CORTEZ 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO.  4, SERIES 2022 

A Resolution Recommending Approval of Revisions to Section 3.05 – Use Regulations regarding 
Child Care Facilities, large home based, City of Cortez Land Use Code 

WHEREAS, uses identified in the City of Cortez Land Use Code (the “Code”), Section 3.05, as 
Child care facilities, large home based, are classified as Conditional Uses in all zone districts in the City of 
Cortez; and 

WHEREAS, Colorado House Bill 21-1222 codified amendments to the Child Care Licensing 
Act, C.R.S. § 26-6-101, et. seq, which has been repealed and renumbered as C.R.S. § 26.5-5-301, et. seq, 
(the Child Care Licensing Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Child Care Licensing Act, as amended, requires that all local regulatory 
agencies treat all licensed family child care homes as residences for regulatory purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Code currently classifies large home based child care facilities as conditional uses 
in the RE, R-1, R-2 MH, CBD, C and NB Zoning Districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Code currently classifies single family dwellings as Permitted Uses in the RE, 
R-1, R-2 MH, O and NB Zoning Districts and Conditional Uses in the C Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, at the September 6, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission reviewed the revisions to the Code, as evidenced by the adoption of P&Z Resolution 
No. 4, Series 2022; and 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommends that the Schedule of Use Regulations, Cortez Land Use Code Section 
3.05 be revised as set forth in this Resolution, as required by the Child Care Licensing Act. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION: 

THAT, P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2022, recommends to the City Council of the City of 
Cortez amend the Cortez Land Use Code Section 3.05 to change the classification of large home based 
child care facilities from Conditional Uses to Permitted Uses in the RE, R-1, R-2, MH, and NB zones, and 
to keep the classification of the same as Conditional Uses in the C and CBD zones. 



MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022 

CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

___________________________________ 
Robert Rime, Chairman ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Cheryl Lindquist, Deputy City Clerk 







CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. a.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

Resolution No 27, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council shall consider approving Resolution No 27, Series 2022, approving a minor subdivision of an amended
plat of Tract A, Lot 2, per Re-subdivision of Lot 2 Russell Subdivision as AKC Townhomes.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Resolution No. 27 - Information



City of Cortez 
Planning and Building 
123 Roger Smith Ave 
Cortez, CO 81321 

Item No:   
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2022 
Project No. 22-000179 

TITLE: REVIEW OF AN APPLICATION FOR A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO BE KNOWN 
AS AKC TOWNHOMES, AN AMENDED PLAT OF TRACT A, LOT 2, PER THE 
RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 2 RUSSELL SUBDIVISION. AS SUBMITTED 
BY CANDELARIA CONSTRUCTION AND REVIEW OF RESOLUTION 
NO. 27, SERIES 2022 

ATTACHMENTS:  Council Resolution No. 27, Series 2022; Proposed Minor Subdivision 

BACKGROUND 
The applicant, Candelaria Construction Inc, represented by Stephen Candelaria, is submitting 
application for a Minor Subdivision to divide a recently constructed triplex into three separate 
ownerships for individual sale.  The triplex is located at 1408 N Mildred and zoned R-2.   

ISSUES 
Section 6.11(a) of the City’s Land Use Code allows a Minor Subdivision under the following 

circumstances: 

(1) A parcel of land may be subdivided into no more than four (4) parcels.
(2) No new streets, roads, extensions or access easements need to be widened, dedicated or
developed.
(3) No utilities, other than individual service lines, need to be extended to serve the parcel and the
necessary utilities are in place immediately adjacent to the parcel.
(4) The resulting lots shall be in compliance with all zoning provisions, area and bulk requirements



and any other applicable requirements of this code. 
(5) These procedures may be utilized only one (1) time for each parcel of land.
(6) There are no other problems of public concern

DISCUSSION 
The purpose of this request is to divide the existing building to allow for separate sale of the existing 
units.  The existing structure meets all code requirements.  The applicant has provided CC&R’s to 
address common ownership issues.  The proposal meets the requirements of (6.11(a)) above.   

A request for review and comment was sent to the utility suppliers affected districts and agencies.  The 
following comments were received: 

AGENCY REVIEW 

GIS Coordinator (Doug Roth) 
No issues 

Cortez Building Department 
No comment 

City of Cortez Public Works (George Tripp) 
Attached is my RFC with initials and comment.  I visited the site today and all looks good except the 
driveway is not finished yet.  Since I do not have any plans, my comment is to defer to Sean to check 
their design meets city standards at the street access to Mildred.  I'm sure he has already reviewed that... 

Cortez Sanitation District (Jim Webb)  
The Sanitation District has no issues with the separation request. 

Cortez General Services (Rick Smith) 
I have no comment as it relates to the Fiber system 

Empire Electric (Greg South) 
No Comment 

ALTERNATIVES 

1. The Council can approve the minor subdivision;
2. The Council can deny the minor subdivision and state their reasons;
3. The Council can ask for more information and table the application; or
4. The Council can approve the minor subdivision, and state any conditions they feel would be

necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code.

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approval of the amended plat, with 2 conditions. 

If Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, the Commission can make the motion 
to approve the amended plat as submitted by the owner Candelaria Construction Inc, through 
Council Resolutions No. 27, Series 2022, with the following conditions: 



1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes, and other regulatory documents.

2. The plat shall be recorded at the Montezuma County Clerk and Recorders Office within six (6)
months of Council approval, in accordance with Land Use Code Section 6.11.

PREPARED BY:    Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner 

______________________ 
Drew Sanders, City Manager 



CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL 
RESOLUTION NO. 27, SERIES 2022 

A Resolution approving a minor subdivision of an amended plat of Tract A, Lot 2, Per the 
Re-subdivision of Lot 2 Russell Subdivision as AKC Townhomes  

WHEREAS, Candelaria Construction Inc, as the owner on record (hereinafter the 
“Owner”) has applied for a minor subdivision of Tract A, Lot 2, Per the Re-subdivision of Lot 2 
Russell Subdivision as AKC Townhomes and more particularly described as: 

Tract A, Re-subdivision of Lot 2, Russell Subdivision, a part of the eastern addition to the 
City of Cortez, according to the plat thereof filed for record August 19, 1982 in Book 10 
at Page 79. 

WHEREAS, the Owner has applied to the City for review of a minor subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner presented the necessary submittal items for review by the Cortez 
City Council at a regular meeting held on September 27, 2022; and, 

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.11 and 6.12, minor subdivisions, it is a requirement 
of the Land Use Code that this proposed amendment go through a review by Staff and Council 
prior to approval of the desired plat being recorded; and, 

WHEREAS, the Council is authorized to approve a minor subdivision without notice or 
public hearing when the application meets the criteria of Section 6.11(a) of the Land Use Code; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Council reviewed the proposal and heard testimony concerning the 
application for a minor subdivision of Tract A, Lot 2, Per the Re-subdivision of Lot 2 Russell 
Subdivision at their regular meeting held on September 27, 2022; and, 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, Council 
approved, with conditions, the proposed minor subdivision as evidenced in the approved minutes 
of their meeting on September 27, 2022, and the adoption of Council Resolution No. 27, Series 
2022; and, 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, Council 
approved. 

WHEREAS, it appears that all requirements of Chapters 5.00 and 6.00 of the City’s Land 
Use Code for development of this site have been or can be met. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL: 



CITY OF CORTEZ 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO.  27, SERIES 2022 

THAT, the concept, site plan and application for the Minor Subdivision of Tract A, Lot 2, 
Per the Re--subdivision of Lot 2 Russell Subdivision, to be known as AKC Townhomes, is hereby 
approved, subject to the following conditions: 

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, and affected districts must be
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.

2. The plat shall be recorded at the Montezuma County Clerk and Recorders Office within
six (6) months of Council approval, in accordance with Land Use Code Section 6.11.

FURTHER THAT, the Owner is to coordinate with City staff to ensure that these 
conditions are fully met. 

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022 

___________________________________ 
Rachel B. Medina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Linda L. Smith, City Clerk 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. b.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

Resolution No 28, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
See Attached Information.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving Resolution No 28, Series 2022, approving a minor subdivision (boundary
adjustment) of two parcels located in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township 36 North, Range 16
West, N.M.P.M.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Resolution 28 Information



City of Cortez 
Planning and Building 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 
Cortez, CO 81321 

Item No:   
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2022 
Project No. 12-000120 

TITLE: REVIEW OF AN APPLICATION FOR A MINOR SUBDIVISION (BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT) LOCATED IN THE E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 SECTION 26, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 16 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN,CITY OF CORTEZ, MONTEZUMA AS SUBMITTED BY RUSSELL 
CORTEZ RENTAL PROPERTIES LLC AND REVIEW OF RESOLUTION NO. 
28, SERIES 2022 

ATTACHMENTS:  Council Resolution No. 28 , Series 2022; Proposed Minor Subdivision 

BACKGROUND 
The applicant, Russell Cortez Rental Properties LLC, represented by James Russell, is submitting 
application for a Minor Subdivision to adjust the boundary between two adjacent properties, both owned 
by Russell Cortez Rental Properties LLC.  The properties total 1.91 acres, are located at 428 E. 
Coronado Ave and Empire and are zoned R-2.   

ISSUES 
Section 6.11(a) of the City’s Land Use Code allows a Minor Subdivision under the following 

circumstances: 



 
(1)A parcel of land may be subdivided into no more than four (4) parcels. 
(2)No new streets, roads, extensions or access easements need to be widened, dedicated or developed. 
(3)No utilities, other than individual service lines, need to be extended to serve the parcel and the 
necessary utilities are in place immediately adjacent to the parcel. 
(4)The resulting lots shall be in compliance with all zoning provisions, area and bulk requirements 
and any other applicable requirements of this code. 
(5)These procedures may be utilized only one (1) time for each parcel of land. 
(6)There are no other problems of public concern 
 
DISCUSSION 
The purpose of this request is to adjust the property line between two adjacent parcels.  The properties 
have never been platted, so a minor subdivision is required instead of a plat amendment.  The proposal 
meets the requirements of (6.11(a)) above.   
 
A request for review and comment was sent to the utility suppliers affected districts and agencies.  No 
comments or concerns were received.   
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 

1. The Council can approve the minor subdivision; 
2. The Council can deny the minor subdivision and state their reasons; 
3. The Council can ask for more information and table the application; or 
4. The Council can approve the minor subdivision, and state any conditions they feel would be 

necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approval of  the amended plat, with  2 conditions. 
 
If Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, the Commission can make the motion 
to approve the amended plat as submitted by the owner Russell Cortez Rental Properties Inc, 
through Council Resolutions No. 28, Series 2022, with the following conditions: 
 

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be 
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes, and other regulatory documents.   

2. The plat shall be recorded at the Montezuma County Clerk and Recorders Office within six (6) 
months of Council approval,  in accordance with Land Use Code Section 6.11.   

 
PREPARED BY:    Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner 
 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Drew Sanders, City Manager 



CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL 
RESOLUTION NO. 28, SERIES 2022 

 

A Resolution approving a minor subdivision (boundary adjustment) of two parcels located 
in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township 36 North, Range 16 West, N.M.P.M.  

 
 WHEREAS, Russell Cortez Rental Properties Inc, as the owner on record (hereinafter the 
“Owner”) has applied for a minor subdivision (boundary adjustment) of two parcels located at 428 
E. Coronado Ave and TBD Empire St. owned by Russell Cortez Rental Properties Inc, and more 
particularly described as: 
 

The North 80 feet of the South 212 feet in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, 
Township 36 North, Range 16 West, N.M.P.M. 
AND 
The North 448 feet in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township 36 North, 
Range 16 West 
N.M.P.M. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Owner has applied to the City for review of a minor subdivision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner presented the necessary submittal items for review by the Cortez 
City Council at a regular meeting held on September 27, 2022; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.11 and 6.12,  minor subdivisions, it is a requirement 
of the Land Use Code that this proposed amendment go through a review by Staff and Council 
prior to approval of the desired plat being recorded; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council is authorized to approve a minor subdivision without notice or 
public hearing when the application meets the criteria of Section 6.11(a) of the Land Use Code; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council reviewed the proposal and heard testimony concerning the 
application for a minor subdivision of two parcels described as the North 80 feet of the South 212 
feet in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township 36 North, Range 16 West, N.M.P.M. 
AND the North 448 feet in the E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 of Section 26, Township 36 North, Range 
16 West N.M.P.M.  
at their regular meeting held on September 27, 2022; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, Council 
approved, with conditions, the proposed minor subdivision as evidenced in the approved minutes 
of their meeting on September 27, 2022, and the adoption of Council Resolution No. 28, Series 
2022; and, 
 



CITY OF CORTEZ 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 28 , SERIES 2022 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, Council 
approved 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that all requirements of Chapters 5.00 and 6.00 of the City’s Land 
Use Code for development of this site have been or can be met. 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL: 
 
 THAT, the plat and application for the Minor Subdivision of, to be known as Russell  is 
hereby approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, and affected districts must be 
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.   

2. The plat shall be recorded at the Montezuma County Clerk and Recorders Office within 
six (6) months of Council approval,  in accordance with Land Use Code Section 6.11. 

  

FURTHER THAT, the Owner is to coordinate with City staff to ensure that these 
conditions are fully met. 

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022 

 

 

                      
      ___________________________________ 

       Rachel B. Medina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

 Linda L. Smith, City Clerk 

 

 



COLORADOCORTEZ

UT

DOVE CREEK

MANCOS
DURANGO

TELLURIDE

DOLORES
RICO

TOWAOC

SURVEY STANDARD LLC

AZ NM

LOCATED IN THE E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 SECTION 26,
 TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 16 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

CITY OF CORTEZ, MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO

SHEET

1
OF

1
FILE: DIRECTED BY: PREPARED BY:

JIM RUSSELLSS22-03-TOC05 BRIAN    04-06-2022
REV        07-29-202225 N. MADISON ST.

CORTEZ, COLORADO (81321)
PHONE: (970)565-2480

EMAIL: brian@4corners-survey.com

LOCATED IN THE E/2E/2NW/4NW/4NE/4 SECTION 26,
 TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 16 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

CITY OF CORTEZ, MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. c.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community/Economic Development

SUBJECT:
 

 Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
 See Attached Information.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council shall consider on first reading Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022, an ordinance amending the City of
Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05 - Use Regulations Regarding Dwelling, Accessory Unit - ADU, and set for
public hearing on October 11, 2022.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Ordinance No. 1303, Accessory Dwelling Units - ADU



City of Cortez 
Planning and Building 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 
Cortez, CO 81321 

Item No:   
Meeting Date:  September 27, 2022 
Project No. ADU 

TITLE:  FIRST READING:  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF CORTEZ 
LAND USE CODE, SECTION 3.05 – USE REGULATIONS REGARDING 
DWELLING, ACCESSORY UNIT – ADU. 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Building 

ATTACHMENTS:  Draft Ordinance No. 1303, Series 2022 
ADU Survey Results 
Article links 

BACKGROUND 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) also known as accessary apartments, mother-in-law apartments and 
numerous other names have recently gained more attention in many communities in Colorado and 
throughout the United States as low impact and low cost (to the Community) method of providing more 
affordable housing opportunities (see attached links and articles).  The units provide an opportunity to 
increase density with existing infrastructure (no need to expand roads, water lines, sewer or electric 
lines) and allow for a rental opportunity in desirable single family neighborhoods.  They can also help 
to offset mortgage payments and allow for intergenerational living arrangements, while preserving 
privacy.   

The Land Use Code currently allows for Accessory Dwelling Units in two residential zones, RE and R-
1. Only a few have been permitted under the very restrictive regulations currently in place. At the
urging of elected officials, staff began a review of the existing regulations, conducted several work
sessions with the Planning Commission, conducted public outreach and a public opinion survey.  At
their meeting of September 5, 2022, the Planning Commission recommended the revisions as described
in the attached Planning Commission resolution.

EXISTING REGULATIONS 
3.05 (22) 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). This type of use is intended to provide a mechanism to help meet 
the need of affordable housing by allowing accessory residential dwelling units under certain 
circumstances in areas normally restricted to a single unit, while preserving existing single-family 
character. All accessory single-family dwelling units shall be subject to the following requirements: 
a. An ADU shall be permitted within the RE and R-1 zones as a conditional use and shall be reviewed
by the planning and zoning commission and the city council as per Section 6.10 of this code,
Conditional use permits.
b. The parcel must contain a single-family unit occupied by the property owner.
c. The ADU may be attached or incorporated within the living area of the existing primary dwelling or

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH6ADPR_6.10COUSPE


detached. 
d. The ADU shall not result in an increase of more than twenty (20) percent in the existing living area.
e. The ADU may be used for rental purposes and shall be reserved for occupancy of one (1) or two (2)
persons.
f. The ADU must be provided with two off-street parking spaces as per Section 5.01 of this code and
may be contained in a garage or protected by a carport.
g. Any new construction associated with the ADU shall comply with all setbacks, lot coverage, height,
and design standards contained within the base zone and shall not alter the general appearance of the
primary dwelling as a single-family residence.
h. The ADU shall have adequate sewer and water services and additional tap fees may be required for
the dwelling.
i. The ADU shall not adversely impact traffic flow or parking in the neighborhood.
j. The lot shall consist of twenty (20) percent more area than the minimum lot size in the underlying
zoning district.

An ADU that conforms to these requirements shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density 
for the lot upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential use consistent with the 
existing general plan and zoning designation for the lot. 

DISCUSSION 
An analysis of the existing regulations was conducted below that illustrates the restrictive nature of the 

regulations. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the attached ordinance on the first reading and set a public hearing for consideration of the 
ordinance on the second reading on October 11th.   

PREPARED BY:  Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner 

_________________________________ 
Drew Sanders, City Manager 

Filters Applied ADU Size (SQ FT) Number of Parcels Percentage of Total Parcels Percentage of RESIDENTIAL Parcels

None 4462 100.00% (these are parcels that already have a primary residenc
Zoning = RE or R-1 2037 45.65%

Land Use = RESIDENTIAL 1645 36.87%
 (AND) Lot Size > 120% LUC min 1002 22.46% 60.91%

(AND) HOUSEAREA >= 1000 200 921 20.64% 55.99%
HOUSEAREA >= 1500 300 616 13.81% 37.45%
HOUSEAREA >= 2000 400 341 7.64% 20.73%
HOUSEAREA >= 3000 500 76 1.70% 4.62%

Qualifying Parcels by Zoning Category (Lot Size >= 120% of minimum lot size per L.U.C) this shows which lots could qualify strictly based on lot size
Total Parcels Qualified Parcels (RE and R-1)

Total Parcels 4462 2037
RE Zoning (>= 52,272 sq ft) 3 3
R1 Zoning (>= 8,400 sq ft) 2034 1217

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH5SIDEST_5.01SCAP


ORDINANCE NO. 1303 
SERIES 2022 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF CORTEZ LAND USE CODE, SECTION 
3.05 – USE REGULATIONS REGARDING DWELLING, ACCESSORY UNIT – ADU.  

WHEREAS, uses identified in the City of Cortez Land Use Code (the “Code”), Section 3.05, 
as dwelling, accessory unit - ADU, are classified as Conditional Uses in the RE and R-1 zone districts 
in the City of Cortez; and 

WHEREAS, dwelling, accessory unit – ADU are further subject to the standards in Section 
3.05 (22); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to expand the opportunity for ADU’s in additional zone districts; 
and 

WHEREAS, at the September 6, 2022 Cortez Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the revisions to the Code as described in this ordinance, 
as evidenced by the adoption of P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2022; and 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommends that the Cortez Land Use Code, Section 3.05, be amended as set 
forth in this ordinance. 

WHEREAS, the authority and procedure for amending the City Land Use Code is set 
forth in the Cortez City Charter, and the Code. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL THAT 
THE CITY OF CORTEZ LAND USE CODE, SECTION 3.05, IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 3.05 – Schedule of Use Regulations is amended to require Conditional Use Permits for 
dwelling, accessory unit - ADU in the R-2, MH, NB and C zone districts. 

Section 3.05(22) – Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 

(22) Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). This type of use is intended to provide a mechanism to
help meet the need of affordable housing by allowing accessory residential dwelling units under
certain circumstances in areas normally restricted to a single unit, while preserving existing single-
family character. All accessory single-family dwelling units shall be subject to the following
requirements:

a. An ADU shall be permitted within any zone in the City as a conditional use and shall be reviewed
by the planning and zoning commission and the city council as per Section 6.10 of this code,
Conditional use permits.

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH6ADPR_6.10COUSPE


b. The parcel must contain an existing or proposed single-family unit that is or will be occupied by
the property owner.

c. The ADU may be attached or incorporated within the living area of the existing primary dwelling
or detached.

d. The ADU shall not result in an increase of more than fifty (50) percent in the existing living area
or 750 sq. ft., whichever is greater.

e. The ADU may be used for rental purposes and shall be reserved for occupancy of one (1) or two
(2) persons.

f. The ADU must be provided with two off-street parking space, in addition to the two required for
the existing single family residence as per Section 5.01 of this code.  Spaces  may be contained in a
garage or protected by a carport.  The spaces provided may be in tandem.

g. Any new construction associated with the ADU shall comply with all setbacks, lot coverage,
height, and design standards contained within the base zone and shall not alter the general
appearance of the primary dwelling as a single-family residence.

h. The ADU shall have adequate sewer and water services and additional tap fees may be required
for the dwelling.

i. The ADU shall not adversely impact traffic flow or parking in the neighborhood.

j. The lot shall meet the minimum lot size in the underlying zoning district.

An ADU that conforms to these requirements shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density 
for the lot upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential use consistent with the 
existing general plan and zoning designation for the lot. 

REPEALER. All orders, bylaws, ordinances, and resolutions of the City, or parts thereof, 
inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such 
inconsistency or conflict. 

SEVERABILITY. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of     this Ordinance shall 
for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
Ordinance, the intent being that the same are severable. 

RECORDING AND AUTHENTICATION. Upon adoption hereof, this Ordinance shall 
be recorded in a book kept for that purpose and shall be authenticated by the signatures of the 
Mayor and the City Clerk. 

EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication after second 
reading and final passage. 

FIRST READING.  This ordinance shall be considered first  reading on the 27th day of 

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH5SIDEST_5.01SCAP


September, 2022, at the hour of 7:30 p.m., in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, Cortez, 
Colorado, at which time this ordinance shall be read and the public hearing for the second or final 
reading of this ordinance shall be set. 

PUBLIC HEARING. This ordinance shall be considered for second or final reading on the 
11th day of October, 2022, at the hour of 7:30 p.m., in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 
Cortez, Colorado, at which time and place all persons may appear and be heard concerning the 
same. 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING THIS 27th DAY OF 
September, 2022. 

CITY OF CORTEZ 

ATTEST: 

RACHEL B MEDINA, MAYOR 

LINDA L. SMITH, CITY CLERK 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS 
 DAY OF     , 2022. 

CITY OF CORTEZ 

ATTEST: 

RACHEL B MEDINA, MAYOR 

LINDA L. SMITH, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

J. PATRICK COLEMAN, CITY ATTORNEY



CITY OF CORTEZ 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO.  5, SERIES 2022 

A Resolution Recommending Approval of Revisions to Section 3.05 – Use Regulations regarding 
Dwelling, accessory unit - ADU, City of Cortez Land Use Code 

WHEREAS, uses identified in the City of Cortez Land Use Code (the “Code”), Section 
3.05, as dwelling, accessory unit - ADU, are classified as Conditional Uses in the RE and R-1 zone 
districts in the City of Cortez; and 

WHEREAS, dwelling, accessory unit – ADU are further subject to the standards in Section 
3.05 (22); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to expand the opportunity for ADU’s in additional zone districts; and 

WHEREAS, at the September 6, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission reviewed the revisions to the Code, as evidenced by the adoption of P&Z Resolution 
No. 5, Series 2022; and 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at said meeting, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommends that the Schedule of Use Regulations, Cortez Land Use Code Section 
3.05 be revised as set forth in this Resolution. 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION: 

THAT, P&Z Resolution No. 5, Series 2022, recommends to the City Council of the City of 
Cortez amend the Cortez Land Use Code Section 3.05 require Conditional Use Permits for ADU’s in the 
R-2, MH, NB and C zone districts and to revise Section 3.05(22) as follows:

(22) Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). This type of use is intended to provide a mechanism to help meet
the need of affordable housing by allowing accessory residential dwelling units under certain circumstances in
areas normally restricted to a single unit, while preserving existing single-family character. All accessory
single-family dwelling units shall be subject to the following requirements:
a. An ADU shall be permitted within any zone in the City as a conditional use and shall be reviewed by
the planning and zoning commission and the city council as per Section 6.10 of this code, Conditional use
permits.

b. The parcel must contain an existing or proposed single-family unit that is or will be occupied by the
property owner.

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH6ADPR_6.10COUSPE


c. The ADU may be attached or incorporated within the living area of the existing primary dwelling or
detached.

d. The ADU shall not result in an increase of more than fifty (50) percent in the existing living area or
750 sq. ft., whichever is greater.

e. The ADU may be used for rental purposes and shall be reserved for occupancy of one (1) or two (2)
persons.

f. The ADU must be provided with two off-street parking spaces, in addition to the two required for the
existing single family residence as per Section 5.01 of this code.  Spaces may be contained in a garage or
protected by a carport.  The spaces provided may be in tandem (one car in front of the other).

g. Any new construction associated with the ADU shall comply with all setbacks, lot coverage, height, and
design standards contained within the base zone and shall not alter the general appearance of the primary
dwelling as a single-family residence.

h. The ADU shall have adequate sewer and water services and additional tap fees may be required for the
dwelling.

i. The ADU shall not adversely impact traffic flow or parking in the neighborhood.

j. The lot shall meet the minimum lot size in the underlying zoning district.

An ADU that conforms to these requirements shall not be considered to exceed the allowable density for 
the lot upon which it is located, and shall be deemed to be a residential use consistent with the existing 
general plan and zoning designation for the lot. 

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 6th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022 

CORTEZ PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION 

___________________________________ 
Robert Rime, Chairman ATTEST: 

_______________________________
_ Cheryl Lindquist, Deputy City Clerk 

https://library.municode.com/co/cortez/codes/land_use?nodeId=LAND_USE_CODE_CH5SIDEST_5.01SCAP


Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

1 / 14

97.37% 37

2.63% 1

Q1 Should accessory dwelling units (ADUs) continue to be allowed in
Cortez?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

2 / 14

71.05% 27

7.89% 3

21.05% 8

Q2 If yes, what areas and/or zones of the City should they be allowed?
Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

All zoning
districts wh...

In districts
with the...

Continue to be
allowed only...

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

All zoning districts where residential properties are allowed.

In districts with the densest single family neighborhoods where the minimum lot size is 6,000 square feet or less (R-2,
MH, C, NB zoning districts)

Continue to be allowed only in low-density residential neighborhoods where minimum lot size is 7,000 square feet or
more (R-1, RE zoning districts).



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

3 / 14

23.68% 9

71.05% 27

5.26% 2

Q3 Currently a lot must be 20% larger than the minimum lot size to be able
to apply for an ADU.  Should this requirement be continued?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes (allow
only oversiz...

No (allow all
conforming l...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes (allow only oversized lots to apply)

No (allow all conforming lots to apply)

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

4 / 14

52.63% 20

28.95% 11

18.42% 7

Q4 If more ADUs were available, would a property with an ADU be an
attractive living arrangement for you or your family?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Very attractive

Attractive

Not Attractive

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Very attractive

Attractive

Not Attractive



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

5 / 14

23.68% 9

50.00% 19

15.79% 6

10.53% 4

Q5 If ADUs continue to be allowed, what process should be required for
the approval of an ADU?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

By right, no
additional...

Any ADU should
continue to ...

Only detached
ADUs should ...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

By right, no additional approval necessary.

Any ADU should continue to be permitted through a conditional use permit process which is a process where public
notice is given, and public hearings held by the Planning Commission and City Council).

Only detached ADUs should be permitted through an additional board approval process where public notice is given.

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

6 / 14

36.84% 14

10.53% 4

18.42% 7

21.05% 8

13.16% 5

Q6 Should there be a restriction on the size of an ADU?
Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No, there
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

No, there should be no size limitation on the ADU.

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 500 square feet in area.

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 750 square feet in area.

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 850 square feet in area.

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

7 / 14

13.16% 5

15.79% 6

39.47% 15

15.79% 6

13.16% 5

2.63% 1

Q7 Should there be a restriction on the size of an ADU relative to the
existing dwelling?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

No, there
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be no...

Yes, the ADU
should be eq...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

No, there should be no size limitation on the ADU.

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 20% of the existing single family home (existing rule).

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 50% of the existing single family home.

Yes, the ADU should be no greater than 75% of the existing single family home.

Yes, the ADU should be equal to or less than the existing single family home. 

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

8 / 14

36.84% 14

31.58% 12

31.58% 12

0.00% 0

Q8 Should the owner of a property with an ADU be required to live in the
primary residence?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes, the
primary...

No, allow the
owner to occ...

No, the
property own...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, the primary residence should be owner occupied (existing rule).

No, allow the owner to occupy either the primary residence or the ADU.

No, the property owner should not be required to live on the property (both units could be rented).

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

9 / 14

5.26% 2

7.89% 3

84.21% 32

2.63% 1

Q9 Should there be a restriction on the location of the accessory dwelling
unit?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ADUs should
have to be...

ADUs should
have to be...

ADUs can be
attached or...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

ADUs should have to be attached to the primary dwelling unit.

ADUs should have to be detached (stand-alone) from the primary dwelling unit.

ADUs can be attached or detached (stand-alone) from the primary dwelling unit.

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

10 / 14

52.63% 20

21.05% 8

26.32% 10

Q10 Should ADUs be required to provide additional, off-street parking?
Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes, 1
additional...

Yes, 2
additional...

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, 1 additional parking spot should be allocated for the ADU.

Yes, 2 additional parking spots should be allocated for the ADU (current regulation).

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

11 / 14

23.68% 9

36.84% 14

21.05% 8

7.89% 3

10.53% 4

Q11 If ADUs were allowed in your neighborhood, how likely would you
pursue constructing one within the next 3 years on your property?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Very likely

Likely

Neither likely
nor unlikely

Unlikely

Very unlikely

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Very likely

Likely

Neither likely nor unlikely

Unlikely

Very unlikely



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

12 / 14

76.32% 29

10.53% 4

13.16% 5

Q12 If your next-door neighbor sought to build and ADU, would you
approve?

Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

13 / 14

84.21% 32

10.53% 4

2.63% 1

2.63% 1

Q13 Where is your primary residence?
Answered: 38 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 38

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

City of Cortez

Montezuma
County (outs...

Visitor to area

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

City of Cortez

Montezuma County (outside of City limits)

Visitor to area

Other (please specify)



Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU's) Planning Survey SurveyMonkey

14 / 14

Q14 Additional Comments
Answered: 15 Skipped: 23



������������	
����������
�����������������������	�� ���������!���������!	�����"�����!#$�#���������������#�	#	#$����%����	�#��	���!$���	�����������!�����	��	������$"�"����&	"��&#���&'!�'&���#$�����!����������!�����	��	��������������$�#�����(�#��(!���(!'(�#���(!��$���)�����(�#*�(!��!����	���(!'(�#*�(!�+���(!'(�#*��,� � �&��� ���&����&����&����� ����& ����'������&���&�-���'��(�"�����������������#�	#	#$������������(!�(�"(�"���
������ ������
���.
/01234563337890:;2<=23>29?2@345A90:;2<=2B29?2@563337CDC3DEF;GBH?G09I345JEF;GBH?G09I563337D;H99G9=3KH=HLG92345J;H99G9=563337
M456 NOPQ3RSTOPQSUVOW3XQ3RSYOWPQSZQ[\]̂S_ỲQQPQWSabacSdPQ][eSfghOQPQWgij̀QW[kg]j̀]gl̀ m[ge[kPn[Q]P̀YgQ[PWjoOejOOnkglOe[g̀pOeǹoY[SU q Krstu2H@Bvwxyzz{z|3}y|y~{z��3~�����3�������3����3}���3�����������z������������3}���3y����������y��3��{�3y��{�x������������3��������� ��¡¢�����������������£3¤�¥��� 

r9?2@3A2¦:0@<30@3Jv@HI2



����������	
�����
���
�������
���
���������
	�����������������
������
��
���������
����
��������
������	
��
���
�����������	�
�����������	�
���������
��	������
����
����	
�����
 �������!"#$
%&
$'(
)*+#,!$%#+
+(#*(+
-.!/"00*01.+(#*(+.)*+#,!$%#+23456
78
9:97;<
#%=(#$
/*=(#$>



��������	
�����	�������������������������������������������	��������	����	�����������	�������������	�������	�������
��  ��!"�#�
����!�	� "�#� �	�������$�����	��$����	���%����&�	�������'	����!�(���������������"�	��)�	������	�������������
�������	�	�����������*������	���������������)�����+���������	��������,!-!�&������������&������!./�01232456247�89:;<41=�><4247

?���@���������)��"��	��	�
����������	������������	����"���������@�,��	�����������������)
����(���	����AB������	������	���C�	�(�����	�������"�����	�@�,�����-DE�*����!�&��������	���������	!����������
��  """!����	!����� %!F/�03G:5H247�5IJ8



���������	
������	��	����	���������	���	����	������������	�	����������	���������	����	��
������	����	��	����	������	��
�������	���	��	�������	��	�������	������������	�����	��������	����	������� !��������	"��������	������	#����	�����	$�������%&	'()*+,-	./(.0/	(1/2	342*



������������
	
��
��
���	����
�

��������������� �!"��#$%&'())*+,�-.,/�(',0�-(1)/(1)�203.,�0)�+1,1)4�+(/*,�02�50-*'*,,6�4*)/+173(/10)�()8�81,9'(3*-*)/6�+*)/:;.+8*)*8�50.,*50'8,6�()8�/5*�+1,*�02�0)*:9*+,0)�50.,*50'8,<

=>?@A�B>C=�?@BCDEA
���
	�
������=1)4'*8�F./�02�@*,18*)/1('�E()8�G,*�HI9'())1)4IJKJKIL.'I/00',:'*4(':'*,,0),IMN�OP�QR�STST���
	�
������?�>0.,1)4�@*U0'./10)�1)�V1))*(90'1,�HI9'())1)4IJKWXI-(YI+*,*(+35IM�P�QR�STQZ���
	�
������?[G,�/0�/5*�@*,3.*\�HI9'())1)4IJKJKI2*;I1)/*+,*3/10),:50.,1)4IM��]̂�QR�STST���
	�
������&*09'*�FU*+�&(+_1)4�HI9'())1)4IJKẀI03/I9*09'*0U*+9(+_1)4IM���̂�QR�STQa



� ��������		


������������	��������������������������� ��������		


������������	����	��������������������� ��������		�
���������	��� ��������! �������		�����������	������������������������" ��������		


������#������	������	$%%&'	�

()*+�,-�./0�-12++)+*�342)1(5676896�:;<==8=>�?6<@AB6C�<B@87;6D�<=C�B676=@�7E=@6=@�8=�FEAB�8=GEHIJKLMNOKPQRSTUVURMWXYUMYVNPZPNPXMPLRJV[UYPR\
]/^+1/2]�-12++)+*�42*2_)+37̀76DD�@a6�bED@�B676=@�8DDA6c�dEe=;E<C�@a6�C8>8@<;�96BD8E=�=EecfWg�OX�YW�[WhXiWU[QjYYVLkRRhhhlViUXXOXglWNgRVJKiOMUYOWXLR[WMJSPXYRmnoppnoR\q rstu�vw�xwy� �z���{���	�����	|��}�~	� �����������	���������������	� ���������������	�������	�������������$�$$������������������������#��	�������	��������������������������������������		�����������	������	�����#���������	#�������	�



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. d.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Linda Smith, City Clerk

SUBJECT:
 

Appointment of Orly Lucero to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals and Rachel Weaver and
Darren Uptain to the Cortez Historic Preservation Board
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please see attached Letters of Interest from Mr. Lucero and Ms. Weaver and a Letter of Support from Linda
Towle, Chairman for the Cortez Historic Preservation Board.  Also attached is the letter from Ann Wilson Brown,
Chairman of the Montezuma County Historical Society, nominating their candidate Darren Uptain to represent the
Montezuma County Historical Society on the Cortez Historic Preservation Board.
 

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider appointing Orly Lucero to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals for a three year term and
Rachel Weaver to the Cortez Historic Preservation Board for a three year term.  Also, as requested by the
Montezuma County Historical Society, that Darren Uptain be appointed as their representative on the Cortez
Historic Preservation Board, replacing Patricia Lacey, for a three year term.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Board Appointments
Darren Uptain Nomination











CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. e.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Vickie Haddix, General Services Secretary

SUBJECT:
 

2022 Library HVAC Equipment Bid Results
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please See Attached Memo

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council may consider making a motion to award the 2022 Library HVAC equipment bid to Trane at the bid
amount of $134,750.52.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Library HVAC Equipment
Trane Bid



Item No: 430 

Meeting Date: September 27, 2022 

 

TITLE:  2022 LIBRARY HVAC EQUIPMENT BID RESULTS  

 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: GENERAL SERVICES 

 

ATTACHMENTS: TRANE BID RESPONSE 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The 2022 Capital Projects Budget provides for the replacement of the Cortez Public Library 

HVAC units. Because of the long lead times (11 Months) to receive the equipment the project 

will not be completed until 2023.  

 

To keep the project moving forward ME& E and the City staff determined that getting the 

equipment on order earlier than later was the best way to coordinate scheduling of the work.  

 

DISCUSSION 

The City bid out the equipment and received bids on September 16, 2022. The bid received was 

a national cooperative bid from Trane Technologies and the Omni group. The City belongs to the 

Omni cooperative purchasing group. Please refer to the Trane bid for specifics. The following is 

an overview of the bid received. 

 

 Vendor    Total Bid Price 

1. Trane Technologies    $134.750.52 

 

The individual price for each piece of equipment includes the 1-year manufacturer’s warranty. 

  

FISCAL IMPACTS  

 

The equipment will not be paid for until they ship in 2023, and the Capital Project has been 

extended into the 2023 budget.   

 

City of Cortez 

City Council 

Agenda Memorandum 

21/GS/2022 



 

RECOMMENDATION   

 

Council may consider making a motion to award the 2022 Library HVAC equipment bid 

to Trane at the bid amount of $134,750.52. 

 

  

Prepared By:  Rick Smith, General Services Director 

   

                        

                                                    City Manager 

 

 

 









CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. f.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Vickie Haddix, General Services Secretary

SUBJECT:
 

4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club Heating System
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
The 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club leases the property and building that are owned by the City of Cortez. The
Club recently secured a grant to improve the heating system in the building. The old heating system is 50 years
old. Comfort Air has looked at the system and proposes a new system that will meet the Club's needs.

 

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council may consider making a motion giving permission to the 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club to replace the
heating system using the NRA grant and Club monies.
 

A ttachmentsA ttachments
22 Cortez Rifle & Pistol
Roger Letter



Item No: 423 

Meeting Date: September 27, 2022 

 

TITLE:  4 CORNERS RIFLE & PISTOL CLUB HEATING SYSTEM  

 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: GENERAL SERVICES 

 

ATTACHMENTS: EMAIL FROM ROGER LAWWRENCE 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club leases the property and building that are owned by the City 

of Cortez. The Club recently secured a grant to improve the heating system in the building. The 

old heating system is 50 years old. Comfort Air has looked at the system and proposes a new 

system that will meet the Club’s needs.  

 

DISCUSSION 

The 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol Club is seeking the City’s permission to replace the heating 

system with the grant. There will be no cost to the City as the grant and club monies will 

completely fund the project.  

  

FISCAL IMPACTS  

No cost to the City.  

 

RECOMMENDATION   

 

Council may consider making a motion giving permission to the 4 Corners Rifle and Pistol 

Club to replace the heating system using the grant and Club monies.  

  

Prepared By:  Rick Smith, General Services Director 

   

                        

                                                    City Manager 

 

 

 

City of Cortez 

City Council 

Agenda Memorandum 

20/GS/22 





CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. g.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Jeremy Patton, Airport Manager

SUBJECT:
 

Lease Agreement with Denver Air Connection
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please See Attached Information.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving the Lease Agreement with Denver Air Connection for the use of the terminal and
movement areas as described in the Lease Agreement.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Memo on Denver Air Connection
Airline Agreement with Denver Air



















CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. h.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Jeremy Patton, Airport Manager

SUBJECT:
 

Ordinance No. 1312, Series 2022
 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please see attached information.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving on first reading, Ordinance No. 1312, Series 2022, authorizing and approving
an amendment to a ground lease with Classic Air Medical for construction of an aircraft hangar at the Cortez
Municipal Airport, and set for public hearing on October 11, 2022.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Memo on Classic Air Lease Agreement
Ordinance 1312
Hangar Development Agreement
Hangar Drawing



































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 

 
September 27, 2022 Agenda Item: 7. i.
 
MEMO TO:
 

Honorable Mayor and City Council
 

FROM:
 

Drew Sanders, City Manager

SUBJECT:
 

Dolores River National Conservation Area and Special Management Area Letter of Support

 
 

BA CK G RO U N DBA CK G RO U N D
Please see attached letter.

RECO MMEN D A TIO NRECO MMEN D A TIO N
Council will consider approving a Letter of Support for the Dolores River National Conservation Area and
Special Management Area and authorize the Mayor to sign the Letter.

A ttachmentsA ttachments
Letter of Support




	Agenda
	2.a. Minutes for Council meeting on September 13, 2022
	       ATT_Worksession Minutes for September 13, 2022
	       ATT_Agenda Minutes for September 13, 2022
	2.b. Expenditure List
	       ATT_Expenditure List
	092322 Expenditure List
	091622 Expenditure List.pdf
	091622 Expenditure List


	5.a. Discussion and action on the 2nd reading of the Child Care code amendment
	       ATT_Daycare facilities
	PC resolution home daycare
	pc staff report - Day Care homes (2)

	       ATT_Ordinance No. 1310, Series 2022
	7.a. Resolution No 27, Series 2022, Candelaria minor subdivision
	       ATT_Resolution No. 27 - Information
	City Council staff report Candelaria
	1408 N Mildred CC resolution

	7.b. Resolution No 28, Series 2022, Russell minor subdivision
	       ATT_Resolution 28 Information
	City Council staff report
	Russell CC resolution1
	C__Users_SS_Desktop_SS22_36-16-26 Jim Russel 04-06-22_36-16-26 Jim Russel 04-06-22 Layout2 (1)

	7.c. Ordinance No. 1303, Accessory Dwelling Units - ADU
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 1303, Accessory Dwelling Units - ADU
	City Council ADU 1st staff report
	Assessory Dwelling Units Amendments Ordinance 9-6-22
	ORDINANCE NO. 1303

	PC resolution ADU's
	ADU Survey results Summary Data
	3 Zoning Changes That Make Residential Neighborhoods More Affordable

	7.d. Appointments to Boards
	       ATT_Board Appointments
	       ATT_Darren Uptain Nomination
	7.e. 2022 LIBRARY HVAC EQUIPMENT BID RESULTS
	       ATT_Library HVAC Equipment
	       ATT_Trane Bid
	7.f. 4 Corners Rifle & Pistol Club Heating System
	       ATT_22 Cortez Rifle and Pistol
	       ATT_Roger Letter
	7.g. Denver Air Connection
	       ATT_Memo on Denver Air Connection
	       ATT_Airline Agreement with Denver Air
	7.h. Classic Air Medical
	       ATT_Memo on Classic Air Lease Agreement
	       ATT_Ordinance 1312
	       ATT_Hangar Development Agreement
	       ATT_Hangar Drawing
	7.i. Dolores River National Conservation Area
	       ATT_Letter of Support



